












































DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of the Company had not declared any Dividend during the year.
HUMAN RESOURCES AND DEVELOPMENT
Availability of Talent play an important role in achieving the exceptional challenges set by Government 
for the bank. Bank employs various staffing methods to meets its manpower requirement. Functional 
experts are deputed from PSBs. Various positions in Middle management are hired from competitive 
exam and interviews. Specialized and niche positions are also recruited on Contract positions. IPPB 
also engaged retired General Managers from PSBs in various capacities to leverage their experience 
and expertise for guiding and grooming IPPB managerial cadre.

Training

•	 The Training intervention for Direct Recruits at Corporate office at the Middle Management level  
included Technical Capability programs curaed function wise on topics like Payments System, 
AML /KYC, CVC Guidelines, IMPS  /UPI, Operational Risk Management etc. to enhance their exist-
ing technical capabilities. 

•	 On the Behavioural Training front employees were nominated for programs like Developing Women  
Leadership , Enhancing Bank Employees ‘Performance and Wellbeing through Leadership ,Justice, 
Support & Spirituality etc.

•	 To encourage the culture of E- Learning the bank has  launched the Self Learning Portal for its 
employees & 3,00,000 Business Correspondents.

•	 An Extensive Induction Training Program for Six Days was conducted at IICA for all the Field staff  
and DOP employees on deputation Joining the Bank at Scale I ,II & III. 

•	 Training Intervention for the around 4000 Department of Post (DoP) Master Trainers was con-
ducted at Postal Training Centre (PTC) , to sensitize them about IPPB & its offerings & further 
train & certify them to further train around 3,00,000 End Users who shall be acting as Business 
Correspondents for the Bank .

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The Directors would like to assure the Members that the financial statements for the year under re-
view conform in their entirety to the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.  

The Directors confirm that:

•	 the Annual Accounts have been prepared in conformity with the applicable Accounting Standards;

•	 the Accounting Policies selected and applied on a consistent basis, give a true and fair view of the 
affairs of the Company and of the profit for the financial year;

•	 sufficient care has been taken that adequate accounting records have been maintained for safe-
guarding the assets of the Company; and for prevention and detection of fraud and other irregu-
larities;

•	 the Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

•	 the systems devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were ad-
equate and operating effectively.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS
The Statutory Auditors of your Company, M/s. V.K. Sehgal & Associates Co., Chartered Accountants  
(FRN – 011519N) wereappointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company for the financial year 2017-
18 by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG of India) in terms of Section 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Statutory Auditors have audited the Financial Statements of the Company for 
the Periodended 31st March, 2018.

Pursuant to section 139 of Companies Act 2013, The Comptroller and Auditor General of India Vide letter  
dated 14th September, 2018 has reappointed M/s. V.K. Sehgal & Associates Co., Chartered Accountants  
(FRN – 011519N) as the Statutory Auditor/ Branch Auditor of the Company for the FY 2018-19. Your 
Directors recommend their appointment on terms recommended by the Audit Committee. The Com-
pany has received requisite certificate to the effect that their reappointment, if made, at the ensuing 
AGM would be in accordance with Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Notes on Finan-
cial Statements referred to in the Annual Report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
comments.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended31st March, 2018 and the Management’s Replies thereonand the comments of Comptroller & 
Auditor General ofIndia on Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2018 under Section 
143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with the Management’s Replies thereon are enclosed to 
the Board’s Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appoint-
ment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/S 
Sadhna Sharma& Associates, Company Secretaries, New Delhi to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2018 is 
annexed as Annexure 1 to the Report. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks 
made by Secretarial Auditor in their report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

As required by the Companies Act 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the relevant 
data pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo is given in the prescribed format and is annexed to this Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 
19th January, 2107. CSR provisions are yet not applicable on the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Bank’s Board of Directors are broad-based and its constitution is governed by the provisions of 
the Companies Act 2013 and Banking Regulation Act 1949. The Board functions directly as well as 
through various Board Committees constituted to provide focused governance in the important func-
tional area of the Bank.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

None of the Directors on your Bank’s Board is related in any manner, directly or indirectly, to any 
other Director.

QUORAM FOR THE BOARD MEETINGS

The quorum for the Board Meetings shall be one-third of the total strength or two Directors, which-
ever is higher subject to at least one Director being a nominee of the Central government. 

Board of Directors of the Company as on 31st March 2018:

S.No Name of the Director Designation Period of occupancy with 
effect

1 ANANTA NANDA NARAYAN CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR 25/05/2017

2 ANSHUMAN SHARMA DIRECTOR 17/08/2016

3 MADHUMITA G DAS DIRECTOR 17/08/2016

4 SURESH KUMAR SETHI MD & CEO 27/10/2017

5 KRISHNA GOPAL KARMAKAR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 28/06/2017

6 GAURI SHANKAR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 28/06/2017

7 PRAMOD KUMAR DAS INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 01/12/2017

8 VISHNU RAMPRATAP DUSAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 30/01/2018

9 PILLARISETTI SATISH INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 30/01/2018

10 SUSHAMA NATH INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 30/01/2018

The following persons were appointed as Director/ Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the year 
/ from the date of last AGM to till date under report:

S.No Name of the Director Designation Period of occupancy with 
effect

1 ANANTA NANDA NARAYAN CHAIRMAN & DIRECTOR 25/05/2017

2 SURESH KUMAR SETHI MD & CEO 27/10/2017

3 KRISHNA GOPAL KARMAKAR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 28/06/2017

4 GAURI SHANKAR INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 28/06/2017

5 PRAMOD KUMAR DAS NOMINEE DIRECTOR 01/12/2017

6 VISHNU RAMPRATAP DUSAD INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 30/01/2018

7 PILLARISETTI SATISH INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 30/01/2018

8 SUSHAMA NATH INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR 30/01/2018

9 MADHUMITA G DAS DIRECTOR 17/08/2016

10 ANSHUMAN SHARMA DIRECTOR 17/08/2016
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The following persons ceased to be Director/KMP during the year under report / 

from the date of last AGM totill date:

S.No Name of the Direc-
tor

Designation Date of appoint-
ment

 Date of Resignation

1 B.V. SUDHAKAR CHAIRMAN & DIREC-
TOR

01.09.2016 28.04.2017

2 A.P.SINGH MD & CEO 27.01.2017 24.10.2017

3 SANDEEP DAVE NOMINEE DIRECTOR 05.01.2017 21.07.2017

The following persons were designated as KMP as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 during the  
periodunder report:

S.No Name of t he Person Designation Period of occupancy with effect

1 SAVITA GUPTA CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 01/03/2017

2 PRIYANKA BHATNAGAR COMPANY SECRETARY 16/01/2017

BOARD MEETINGS 

During the year 2017-18 the Board of Directors of the Company met Eleven (11) times on:

9th Board Meeting
25th May, 2017

10th Board Meeting
28th June, 2017

11th Board Meeting
17th July 2017

12th Board Meeting
13thSeptember, 2017

13th Board 
Meeting
4th October, 2017

14th Board Meeting
12th October, 2017

15th Board Meeting
25th October 2017

16th Board Meeting
1st December, 2017

17th Board 
Meeting
3rd January, 2018

18th Board Meeting
20th February, 2018

19th Board Meeting
26th March, 2018

Director’s Attendance at the Board Meeting

Name of The Director Attendance at your Bank’s Board Meeting (Total 
No. of Meeting held- 11)

ANANTA NANDA NARAYAN 11 out of 11

SURESH KUMAR SETHI 4 out of 4

KRISHNA GOPAL KARMAKAR 10 out of 10

GAURI SHANKAR 9 out of 10

PRAMOD KUMAR DAS 3 out of 3

VISHNU RAMPRATAP DUSAD 2 out of 3
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PILLARISETTI SATISH 3 out of 3

SUSHAMA NATH 3 out of 3

MADHUMITA G DAS 11 out of 11

ANSHUMAN SHARMA 6 out of 11

COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors of the Bank has constituted various sub-Committees of Directors and / or Ex-
ecutives to look into different areas of strategic importance in terms of Reserve Bank of India / SEBI / 
Government of India guidelines on Corporate Governance and Risk Management. The importantCom-
mittees are as under:
     1)  Audit Committee of the Board (ACB)

     2)  Nomination & Remuneration Committee 

     3)  Risk Management Committee

     4)  Customer Service Committee

     5)  Stakeholders Relationship Committee

     6)  Recruitment Advisor Committee

All the Committees of the Board except Recruitment Advisory Committee were constituted on 28th 
June, 2017. Recruitment Advisory Committee was constituted on 01st December, 2017. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has been constituted on 28th June, 2017 and consists of two 
Independent Director and one Nominee Director along with MD & CEO as permanent special Invitee. 
During the year 2017-18 four (o4) Audit Committee meetings were held.

1st Audit Committee 

13th September, 2017

2nd Audit Committee

04th Octoer, 2017

3rd Audit Committee 

01st December 2017

4th Audit Committee

20th February, 2018

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The few list of functions inter-alia includesthe following:
1.	 recommendations for remuneration of Auditors of the Company;
2.	 review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of the audit 

process;
3.	 examination of the financial statements and the auditors’ report thereon;
4.	 approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;
5.	 scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
6.	 valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever considered necessary;
7.	 evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;
8.	 monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

9.	 any other responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.
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VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has in place a vigil mechanism in the form of Whistle Blower Policy. It aims at providing 
avenues for employees to raise complaints and to receive feedback on any action taken and seeks to 
reassure the employees that they will be protected against victimization and for any whistle blowing 
conducted by them in good faith. The policy is intended to encourage and enable the employees of 
the Company to raise serious concerns within the organization rather than overlooking a problem or 
handling it externally.

The Company is committed to the highest possible standard of openness, probity and accountability. 
It contains safeguards to protect any person who uses the Vigil Mechanism by raising any concern 
in good faith. The Company protects the identity of the whistle blower if the whistle blower so de-
sires, however the whistle blower needs to attend any disciplinary hearing or proceedings as may be 
required for investigation of the complaint. The mechanism provides for a detailed complaint and 
investigation process.

If circumstances so require, the employee can make a complaint directly to the Chairman of the Audit  
Committee. The Company also provides a platform to its employees for having direct access to the  
Managing Director. The confidentiality of those reporting violations is maintained and they are not 
subjected to any discriminatory practice.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee of the Company has been constituted on 28th June, 2017 and con-
sists of two Independent Director, one Nominee Director, MD & CEO and Lead Risk and Compliance 
Officer as a special Invitee. The Company has duly implemented Risk Management Policy. During the 
year 2017-18 One (o1) Risk Management Committee meetings were held.

1st RMC

20th February, 2018

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The Nomination Remuneration Committee of the Company has been constituted on 28th June, 2017 and  
consists of two Independent Director and one Nominee Director. During the year 2017-18 One (o1) 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings were held.

1st NRC 

12th December, 2017

Customer Service Committee

The Customer Service Committee of the Company has been constituted on 28th June, 2017 and 
consists of two Independent Director, one Nominee Director, MD & CEO and Lead Customer Service 
Officer as a special Invitee. During the year 2017-18 Two (o2) Customer Service Committee meetings 
were held.
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1st CRC 

03rd October, 2017

2nd CRC 

26th March, 2018

Recruitment Advisory Committee
The Recruitment Advisory Committee of the Company has been constituted on 01st December, 2017 
and consists of two Independent Director, one Nominee Director, MD & CEO and Chief Human Re-
source Officer as a special Invitee. During the year 2017-18 Two (o2) Recruitment AdvisoryCommittee 
meetings were held.

1st RAC

03rd December, 2017

2nd RAC 

07th February, 2018

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Company has been constituted on 28th June, 2017 
and consists of One Independent Director, one Nominee Director and MD & CEO. During the year 
2017-18 no meetings were held.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION

The Company has received the necessary declaration from each ID in accordance with Section 149(7) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the criteria of independence as laid out in sub-section (6) 
of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and in the opinion of the Board they fulfil the conditions 
specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and are Independent of the management

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(2) OF  
THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATIONOF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES,  
2014 REGARDING EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION

IPPB being a Government Company, the provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
relevant Rules shall not apply in view of the Gazette notification dated 05.06.2015 issued by Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, Government of India. The terms and conditions of the appointment of Functional 
Directors is decided by the Government of India. The salary, terms and conditions of the appointment 
of Company Secretary, KMPs of IPPB, is in line with the parameters prescribed by the Company.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3)(p) OF THECOMPANIES ACT, 2013 REGARDING  FORMAL
ANNUAL EVALUATION MADE BY BOARD OFITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS COMMIT-
TEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

IPPB being a Government Company, the provisions ofsection 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 
and relevant Rules shall not apply in view of the Gazette notification dated 05.06.2015 issued by Min-
istry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
There are no related party contracts, arrangements or transactions undertaken by the Company dur-
ing the year and hence the no disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by 
the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in form AOC 2.
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HOLDING & SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

There is no Holding or Subsidiary Company.

CHANGES IN AUTHORIZED AND PAID SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

(I) AUTHORIZED CAPITAL:      	1,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each.
(II) PAIDUP CAPITAL:                 	 27,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-             
Each

RIGHT ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES

The Company has made right issue of 15,00,00,000 Equity Shares to President of India through Secre-
tary of Posts, existing equity shareholder in proportion of existing shareholding of the Shareholders.

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

An extract of Annual Return in Form MGT 9 as on 31st March, 2018, pursuant to subsection (3) of sec-
tion 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and forming part of this report is annexed to this report.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES ORINVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF 
THECOMPANIES ACT, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company exceeding the limits specified 
under Section186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year underreview and hence, the said provi-
sion is not applicable.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company 
which has occurred during the period of this report.

RIGHT TO INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has set up an elaborate mechanism throughout the Organization to deal with the 
requests received under the Right to Information (RTI) Act, 2005.To assist and facilitate the citizen 
in obtaining information,detailed guidelines have been placed on IPPB’s website, spelling out the 
procedure for securing access toinformation and filing of first appeals under the Act. Proactive disclo-
sures have been made on IPPB’s website inline with Section 4(1)(b) of the Act, disseminating various 
categories of information so that citizens have minimum need to resort to the Act for the purpose of  
obtaininginformation.

RAJBHASHA (OFFICIAL LANGUAGE)

Your Company makes concerted efforts to spread and promote the Official Language (Rajbhasha 
Hindi). Inpursuance of Official Language Policy/ Act/ Rules/ Ordersof the Govt. of India, efforts are 
continuing towards increasing the use of Hindi in Official work. Some of the important steps taken in 
this regard during the year i.e.Hindi Pakhwadawas organized in the Company in order to increase the 
usages of Hindi in day-to-day official correspondence using simple & colloquial words in writing. The 
Company is also in process to launch its website in Hindi also.
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INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134 (3) (q) OF THECOMPANIES ACT, 2013, READ  WITH RULE 
8(5)(viii) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014REGARDING ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL  
FINANCIALCONTROLS

The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational efficiency, protection and 
conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial reporting and compliance with laws 
and regulations. The internal control system is supported by an internal audit process for reviewing 
the adequacy and efficacy of the Company’s internal controls, including its systems and processes 
and compliance with regulations and procedures. Internal Audit Reports are discussed with the Man-
agement.

STATUTORY DISCLOSURE BY DIRECTORS:

None of the Directors of your Company is disqualified asper provisions of Section 164 of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013.Your Directors have made necessary disclosures asrequired under various provisions of 
the Companies Act,2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has in place a risk management policy which aims to have balance between risk and 
return. It entails the identification, measurement and management of risks in the business of the 
Company. As per the policy monitoring and corrective actions are taken on a continuous basis. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

During the year under review, the relations between the Management and the workmen were highly 
cordial. Human resources initiatives such as skill up gradation, training, and productivity improve-
ment were the key focus areas for development of the employees of the Company.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION PROHIBI-
TION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company is committed to provide a healthy environment and thus does not tolerateany dis-
crimination and/ or harassment in any form. The Company has adopted an Anti-Sexual Harassment 
Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Preven-
tion, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress 
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All women employees (permanent, contractual, 
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temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. During the year 2017-18, no complaints were  
received by the Company.

Your Directors further state that during the year’ under review, there were no cases filed
Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) 
Act, 2013.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors acknowledges with deep sense of appreciation for the cooperation re-
ceived from the Government of India, particularly the Ministry of Communications(Department of 
Post),Financial Institutions, Banks, Customers and allother stakeholders. The Board of Directors ac-
knowledge with thanks the valued cooperation received from C&AG and the Statutory Auditors, Sec-
retarial Auditors. The Directors take this opportunity to express their thanks for the valuable contri-
bution, hard work and dedication of every employee. The Board is confident thatwith the employees’ 
continued and dedicated efforts, your Company will be able to face the new challenges and achieve 
improved performance.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

				           					   
Place: Delhi 			   A.N. NANDA		            		       SURESH SETHI
Date:05.12.2018		  CHAIRMAN			      MANAGING DIRECTOR& CEO		
				    DIN- 07810425 	         		   DIN -06426040
				    C-1 Block 6,			           C/901, Lodha Bellissimo,
				    New MotiBagh, 		           Appolo Mills Compound	 
				    New Delhi			                 N.M. Joshi Marg,
								                  Mahalaxmi, Mumbai
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FORM NO. MGT. 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on March 31, 2018
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

i)   CIN U74999DL2016GOI304561

ii)  Registration Date 17th August, 2016

iii) Name of the Company India Post Payments Bank Limited

iv) Category/ Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares / Union Government 
Company

v) Address of the Registered office and contact  
    details

Post Office, Speed Post Centre Building, Market 
Road, New Delhi – 110001

vi) Whether listed company No

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of main 
products/ services

NIC Code of the Prod-
uct/ service

% to total turnover 
of the company

1 Payments Bank Group 649 100%

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. 
No.

NAME AND ADDRESS OF 
THE
COMPANY

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDI-
ARY / ASSOCIATE

% of 
shares 
held

Applicable 
Section

1 NA Group 649 100%
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V. 	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

	 i.	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning 
of the year

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year

% 
Change 
during 

the 
year

De-
mat

Physical Total % 
of Total 
Shares

De-
mat

Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian - - - - - - - - -

a) Individual/ 
HUF (Nomineeof 
President 
of India)

- 6 6 .01% - 6 6 .01% -

 b) Central Govt 
State Govt (s)

274999994 274999994 99.99% - 399999994 399999994 99.99% -

  c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

  d) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

  e) Others - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (A) 
(1):-

- - - - - - - - -

 (2) Foreign - - - - - - - - -

a) NRIs – Indi-
viduals

- - - - - - - - -

 b) Other – Indi-
viduals

- - - - - - - - -

 c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

 d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

 e) Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total(A) 
(2):-

- - - - - - - - -

Total 
shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = 
(A) (1)+
(A) (2)

27,50,00,
000

27,50,00,
000

100 - 40,00,00,
000

40,00,00,
000

100 -

B. Public 
Shareholding

- - - - - - - - -
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1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b) Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

c) Central Govt/
    State Govt(s)

- - - - - - - - -

d) Venture 
Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

e) Insurance 
Companies

- - - - - - - - -

f) FIIs - - - - - - - - -

g) Foreign - - - - - - - - -

Venture Capital 
Funds

- - - - - - - - -

i) Others - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)
(1):-

- - - - - - - - -

2.Non-Institu-
tions

- - - - - - - - -

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individual* 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital 
uptoRs. 1 lakh
ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh

- - - - - - - - -

c) Others - - - - - - - - -

i) Foreign
ii) Bodies 
    Corporate

- - - - - - - - -

iii) Directors - - - - - - - - -

iv) Non 
Resident  
 Indians

- - - - - - - - -
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v) Overseas  
    Corporate  
    Bodies

- - - - - - - - -

vi) Clearing     
     members

- - - - - - - - -

vii)Trusts - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total 
(B)(2):-

- - - - - - - - -

Total Public 
Shareholding (B) 
= (B)
(1) + (B)(2)

- - - - - - - - -

C. Shares held 
by Custodian for 
GDRs 
& ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

27,50,00,
000 

27,50,00,
000

100 - 40,00,00,000 40,00,00,000 100 -

*	 6 individuals holding 01 shares each as nominee of President of India

ii.	 Shareholding of Promoters (Equity)

Equity

Sn. No. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

 No. of 
Shares

 % of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
com-
pany

%of 
Shares 

Pledged/
encum-
bered 

to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 

Shares 
of the 
com-
pany

% of Shares 
Pledged/ en-
cumbered to 
total shares

% change 
in share 
holding 

during the 
year

 1 President of India 
through Secretary of 
Posts

27,49,99,
994

100 - 39,99,99,
994*

100 - -

2 Madhumita Gudduluru 
Das (Nominee of Presi-
dent of India)

1 0.000 - 1 0.000 - -

3 Neelam 
Sanghi(Nominee of 
President of India)

1 0.000 - 1 0.000 - -

4 Ajay Kumar Roy
(Nominee of President 
of India)

1 0.000 - 1 0.000 - -

5 Usha Chandra Shekhar
(Nominee of President 
of India)

1 0.000 - 1 0.000 - -
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6 B.P. Sridevi
(Nominee of President 
of India)

1 0.000 - 1 0.000 - -

7 Sachin Kishore
(Nominee of President 
of India)

1 0.000 - 1 0.000 - -

Total 27,50,00,
000

100 - 40,00,00,
000

100 - -

*Includes 06 equity shares held by nominees of President of India

iii.	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): 

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

For Each of the Top 
10 Shareholders

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

1 At the Beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

2 Date wise Increase/Decrease in 
Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for  increase 
/ decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer/ 
bonus / sweat equity etc):

NIL NIL NIL NIL

3 At the End of the year (or on the date 
of separation, if separated during the 
year)

NIL NIL NIL NIL

v.	 Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No.

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

Madhumita G. Das No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

1 At the Beginning of the year 01 .01% - -

Date wise Increase / Decrease 
in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / 
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity etc):

- - - -

At the End of the year (or on the date 
of separation, if separated during the 
year)

01 .01% - -
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V. 	 INDEBTEDNESS

	 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for pay		
	 ment

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total
Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year
i)Principal Amount
ii)Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-
-

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year
•  Addition
•  Reduction

- - - -

Net Change - - - -

Indebtedness at the end of the financial 
year
i)Principal Amount
ii)Interest due but not paid
iii)Interest accrued but not due

- - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -

VI. 	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ 
Manager

Total Amount

1 Gross salary
(a)	 Salary as per provisions contained in sec-
tion 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b)	 Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961
(c)	 Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income- tax Act, 1961

Mr. Suresh Sethi 27.67 lacs pa

2 Stock Option - -

3 Sweat Equity - -

4 Commission
-	 as % of profit
-	 others, specify...

- -

5 Others, please specify (Performance Incentive) - -
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B.	 Remuneration to other directors: (as on 31/3/2018)

Sn. 
No.

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total 
Amount (Rs.)

 1 Independent Directors Mr. Gauri 
Shankar

Dr. K.G. 
Karmakar

Mr. 
Vishnu 
Dusad

Mr. P. Satish Ms. Sushama 
Nath

• Fee for attending 
board /committee meet-
ings
• Commission
• Others, please specify

Rs. 
2,20,000/- 

plus GST
-
-

Rs.  
2,40,000/- 

plus GST
-
-

Rs. 
20,000/- 
Plus GST

-
-

Rs. 20,000/- 
Plus GST

-
-

Rs. 20,000/- 
Plus GST

-
-

Rs. 5,20,000/- 
plus GST

-
-

Total (1) 2,20,000 2,40,000 20000 20000 20000 5,20,000

2 Other Non-Executive 
Directors

Mr. 
A.N.Nanda

Ms. Mad-
humita G. 
das

Mr. 
Sandeep 
Dave

Mr. Anshu-
man Sharma

Mr. Sandeep 
Dave

-

Fee for attending board 
committee meetings
• Commission
• Others, please specify

- - - - - -

Total (2) - - - - - -

Total (B) = (1 + 2) - - - - - -

Total Managerial 
Remuneration

- - - - - -

Overall Ceiling as 
per the Act

- - - - - -

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO Company Secretary CFO Total

1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained 
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec-
tion 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

-

-

-

8.79 Lacs pa 23.68 Lacs 
pa

-

-

2 Stock Option - - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - - -

4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

- - - -

5 Others, please specify(Performance 
Incentive)

- - - -
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VII. 	 PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type Section 
of the Compa-

nies Act

Brief Description Details of Penalty/
Punishment/

Compounding fees 
imposed

Authority 
[RD/NCLT/

COURT]

Appeal 
made, if 
any (give 
Details)

A. COMPANY  - - - - -

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

B. DIRECTORS - - - - -

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN 
DEFAULT              

- - - - -

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

							       For and on behalf of Board of Directors

					           			          
Place: Delhi 				    A.N. NANDA		             SURESH SETHI
Date:05.12.2018			   CHAIRMAN		  MANAGING DIRECTOR& CEO			
					     DIN- 07810425 		  DIN -06426040
			 
					     C-1 Block 6,		  C/901, Lodha Bellissimo,
					     New MotiBagh, 	 Appolo Mills Compound	  
					     New Delhi		  N.M. Joshi Marg,
								        Mahalaxmi, Mumbai
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Pursuant to clause (m) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(3) of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

(A) Conservation of energy:

Steps taken for conservation of energy Installation of Energy efficient equipment

Steps taken for utilisation of alternate sources of  
energy

The Company does not have any alternate sourc-
es of energy

Capital Investment on energy Conversation Investment is considered from time to time  
whenever it is deemed necessary, in order to reduce  
consumption of energy

(B) Technology absorption:

  (i) 	 the efforts made towards technology absorption: NIL
  (ii) 	 the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or 		
	 import 	substi tution: NIL
  (iii)  	 in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned fromthe 		
	 begin ning of the financial year): N.A
		  (a) the details of technology imported
		  (b) the year of import
		  (c) whether the technology been fully absorbed 
		  (d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the
		   reasons thereof; and
		  (iv)  the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: NIL

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

	 Foreign Exchange used:Rs. Nil
	 Foreign Exchange earned: Rs. Nil

Management’s Reply to the Comments of the Statutory Auditors/ CAG Audit for the Financial Year 
2017-18

S.No. Comments/Remarks Management Reply

01 The company has not conducted physical 
verification of fixed assets. The locations of 
the assets are also not mentioned in the re-
cord. Thus the internal control of the organi-
zation is weak

the corrective action in respect of the main-
tenance of Physical Fixed Assets Register 
has been initiated by IT Department for IT 
Assets and for Non-IT assets by the HR/Ad-
ministration Department. (Respective De-
partments)

37



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31STMARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members
India Post Payments Bank Limited
Post Office, Speed Post Centre Building
Market Road New Delhi-110001

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by India Post Payments Bank Limited (hereinafter called 
‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Management’s Responsibility for Secretarial Compliances

The Company’s Management is responsible for preparation and maintenance of secretarial records 
and for devising proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and 
regulations.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records, standards and procedures fol-
lowed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is ad-
equate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns and other records maintained 
by India Post Payments Bank Limited for the financial year ended on 31stMarch, 2017 in accordance 
with the provisions of: 
 (i)   The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder, as applicable;
 (ii)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
       (Not Applicable during the Audit Period)
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
       (Not Applicable during the Audit Period)
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the   
      extent  of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Bor 
       rowings; (Not Applicable during the Audit Period)
(v)  The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,  
      1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz. :- (Not Applicable during the Audit Period)
      a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Take vers)
       Regulations, 2011;
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(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
c)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regu 	
      lations,2009;
(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee  Stock   
      Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999:
(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)  Regulations, 
       2008;
(f)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 
      Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (g) The Securities and  
       Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 
(h)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(vi) The Management has also identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable     
       to the company;
		  (a) Banking Regulation Act, 1949;
		  (b) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and the rules and regulations made there under;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of Secretarial Standards with regard 
to meeting of Board of Directors (SS-1) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, being 
effective from July 01st, 2017

We report that:
1.	 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Direc-

tors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Director and Women Director.
2.	 The Compliance of applicable Financial Laws& matters including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by 

the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by 
the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

3.	 All the decisions of the Board were taken unanimously.
4.	 The Company has obtained all necessary approvals where necessary. 
5.	 The Compliance regarding all specific laws which are applicable to the company has been com-

plied with.
6.	 The Company has filed all required forms with the Registrar of Companies/Central Government 

during the period under review. No form has been filed with Regional Director’ the Tribunal Court 
or other Authorities

7.	 During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the 
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 

We Further Report that
(i)	 There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula-
tions and guidelines.

(ii)	 During the audit period the company has allotted 15, 00, 00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each to 
President of India through Secretary, Department of Post on dated November 8, 2016.
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For Sadhna Sharma & Associates
(Company Secretaries)
       
Sadhna Sharma
(Proprietor)

Membership No: A46639
CoP No: 17870

21st August, 2017, New Delhi

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date, which is annexed as Annexure A and forms 
integral part of this report.
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To,
The Members
India Post Payments Bank Limited
Post Office, Speed Post Centre Building
Market Road New Delhi-110001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as we were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that 
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Ac-
counts of the Company.

4.	 Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.	 The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

For Sadhna Sharma & Associates
(Company Secretaries)
          
Sadhna Sharma
(Proprietor) 

Membership No: A46639
CoP No: 17870

21st August, 2017, New Delhi
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the President of India
For India Post Payment Bank Limited
Report on the audit of standalone Financial Statements 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of INDIA POST PAYMENT BANK 
LIMITED(the ‘Bank’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018 the Profit and loss Ac-
count the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes to the standalone financial state-
ments including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the ‘Act’)  with  respect  to the  preparation of  these standalone financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit and cash flows of the Bank in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Accounting Standards prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, provisions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act 1949 
and the circulars, guidelines and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) from time to 
time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records inaccordance with the  
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; mak-
ing judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financialcontrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting records relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material mis-
statement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements management is responsible forassessing the Bank’s 
ability to continue as a going concern disclosing as applicable matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank 
or to cease operations or has norealistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our 
audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act the accounting and auditing standards and 
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under theprovisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder.
We conducted our audit of standalone financial statements of the Bank in accordance with the Stand-
ards on Auditing (the ‘Standards’) specified under Section 143(10) ofthe Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable as-
surance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material misstatements.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts andthe disclo-
sures in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend onthe auditor’s judg-
ment including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial state-
ments whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal 
control relevant to the Bank’s preparation ofthe standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
the accounting estimates made by the Bank’s Directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the standalone financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going con-
cern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists we are required to draw atten-
tion in the auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or if such 
disclosures are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report. However future events or conditions maycause an 
entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

OPINION
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information requiredby the Banking Regulation 
Act 1949 as well as the Act in the manner so required for banking companies and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of 
the Bank as at 31 March, 2018 and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
i	 We have conducted the audit of accounts of India Post payment Bank Limited for the year ended 

31st March 2018 in accordance with the directions issued by the C&AG of India under Section 
143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certify that we have complied with all the directions issued 
to us.

	 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company:

(a)	 The Company does not have any title deeds/lease deeds for freehold and leasehold land respec-
tively as on 31.03.2018.

(b)	 There are no cases of waiver / write off of debts/loans/interest etc. as on 31.03.2018.
(c)	 There are no inventories lying with third parties as on 31.03.2018 and no assets have been re-

ceived as gifts/grants from government or other authorities as on 31.03.2018.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance withthe provi-
sions of Section 29 of the Banking Regulation Act 1949 read with Section 133 ofthe Act.
As required by sub-section (3) of Section 30 of the Banking Regulation Act 1949 we report that:
(a)	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of ourknowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found them tobe satisfactory;
(b)	 The transactions of the Bank which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the 
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Bank; and
(c)	 Since the key operations of the Bank are automated with the key applications integrated to the 

core banking systems the audit is carried out centrally as all thenecessary records and data re-
quired for the purposes of our audit are available therein.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Further as required by Section 143 (3) of the Act we report that:
(a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
(b)	 In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books;
(c)	 The Balance Sheet the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 

report are in agreement with the books of account;
(d)	 In our opinion the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Stand-

ards specified under Section 133 of the Act to the extent they are not inconsistent with the ac-
counting policies prescribed by RBI;

(e)	 On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31March 2018 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section164 (2) of the Act.

(f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference tothe standalone 
financial statements of the Bank and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer to our 
separate Report in ‘Annexure A’ and;

(g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our infor-
mation and according to the explanations given to us:

(i)	 The Bank does not have any pending litigations and hence there is not impact of the same on its 
financial position in its standalone financial statements;

(ii)	 The Bank has made provision as required under the applicable law or accounting standards for 
material foreseeable losses if any on long-term contracts including derivative contracts;

(iii)	There has been no delay in transferring amounts required to be transferred to the Investor Educa-
tion and Protection Fund by the Bank.

(vi)	The disclosures required on holdings as well as dealing in Specified bank notesduring the period 
from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 as envisaged in notificationG.S.R. 308(E) dated 30 
March 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is notapplicable to the Bank.

For V.K. Sehgal& Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration no. 011519N

											              	           
					       	 Anuj Maheshwari
												            Partner
						      Membership No. 096530
Place: New Delhi
Date: July20, 2018
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TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF INDIA POST PAYMENT BANK LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section143 of the  
Companies Act 2013
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of INDIA POST PAYMENT 
BANK LIMITED (the ‘Bank’) as at 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone finan-
cial statements of the Bank for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial con-
trols based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Bank consider-
ing the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Char-
tered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business including adherence to Bank’s policies the safeguarding 
of its assets the prevention and detection of frauds and errors the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information as required under the 
Companies Act 2013 (the ‘Act’).

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls over financial re-
porting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing (the ‘Standards’) issued by the ICAI anddeemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require thatwe comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over finan-
cial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all materi-
alrespects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe inter-
nal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and test-
ing and evaluating the designand operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement including the assessment of the risks 
of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Bank’s internal financial controls systemover financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
A bank’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A bank’s internal 
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financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the bank; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the bank are being made only 
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the bank; and (3) provide reason-
able assurance regarding prevention or timely detection ofunauthorized acquisition use or disposi-
tion of the bank’s assets that could have amaterial effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also projections of any evaluation of the internal finan-
cial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION
In our opinion the Bank has in all material respects an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls overfinancial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31 March 2018 based on the internalcontrol over financial reporting criteria estab-
lished by the Bank considering theessential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note issued by the ICAI.
						      For V.K. Sehgal& Associates
						      Chartered Accountants
						      Firm’s registration no. 011519N
						    
						      AnujMaheshwari
						      Partner Membership No. 096530
Place: New Delhi
Date: July20, 2018
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INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH 2018

						      (`in Rs)			
						      ------------------	  		      ------------------	
CAPITAL & LIABILITIES				   As on 31.03.2018	          As on 31.03.2017	
						      ------------------	  		      ------------------	
Capital				   1		       4,000,000,000 	  	  2,750,000,000 	
Reserves & Surplus		  2		       3,999,978,207 		       259,731,912 	
Deposits			   3	  	           12,042,943 		           2,370,079 	
Borrowings			   4			    -   		   		        -   	
Other Liabilities and Provisions	
				    5	  	         106,466,830 		       115,849,145 	
						               -----------------		     ------------------ 	
		  TOTAL		  		      8,118,487,980 		   3,127,951,136 	
ASSETS				     	     ========== 		   ========== 	
							     
Cash and Balances with	 6	  	             3,340,292 	           		  247,757 	
Reserve Bank of India						   
Balances with Banks & Money 7	  	         897,876,208 		    1,479,253,208 	
at call & short notice						    
Investments			   8	  	      6,437,877,634 		   1,555,441,976 	
Loans & Advances		  9	  			   -   			    -   	
Fixed Assets			   10	  	           67,439,438 	  	        47,860,355 	
Other Assets			   11	  	         711,954,408 	  	        45,147,840 	
						            ------------------ 	                ------------------ 	
	 TOTAL		  		                  8,118,487,980 		   3,127,951,136 	
					                     ==========		  ==========	
Contingent Liabilities		  12			    2500000			             0	
Bills for Collection						      0			             0	
							     
        								                                    
(Suresh Sethi)                							       (Anant Narayan Nanda)
Managing Director & CEO (DIN no. 06426040)			             Chairman (DIN no. 07810425)
R/o, C/901, Lodha Bellissimo, N M Joshi Marg			   R/o, C1, Block 6, New Moti Bagh, New Delhi
Apollo Mill Compound, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai

												              
(Priyanka Bhatnagar)			                      	           		          (Savita Gupta)
Company Secretary  (PAN No. AQKPB7572L)		  Chief Financial Officer (PAN No. AGOPG2529A) 
R/o C-8 Flat No. 9, Chander Nagar			     R/o B5/96, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi                     
Ghaziabad, UP						    
	 As per our report of even date
	 For V K Sehgal & Associates
	 Chartered Accountants - FRN No. 011519N
								      
	 (Anuj Maheshwari)
	 Partner
 	 Membership No. 096530

Dated: 20/07/2018
Place: New Delhi
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INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018

								        (`in Rs)			
							       ------------------		  -------------------	
							       Year Ended 		  Period Ended 	
	 Schedule					     31.03.2018	  	    31.03.2017	
 							       ------------------	  	 ------------------	
 I.  INCOME						    
Interest earned			   13	  	 395,265,857 		      50,141,265 	
Other Income				    14	  	     2,787,392 		    399,699,021 	
							        ------------------ 		   ------------------ 	
	 TOTAL						      398,053,249 		    449,840,286 	
		   					     ========== 		   ========== 	
II. EXPENDITURE						    
Interest expended			   15		         386,486 		             10,840 	
Operating expenses			   16		   386,317,223 		    416,864,397 	
Provisions and Contingencies				       1,124,934 		      10,747,441 	
							        ------------------ 		   ------------------ 	
	 TOTAL		   				    387,828,643 		    427,622,678 	
						       	 ========== 		   ========== 	
						    
Extraordinary Items 		   			     19,978,311 			    - 	
Prior Period Expenditure						    
						    
Net Profit/Net Loss			   -		      9,753,705 		      22,217,608 	
						    
Balance in Profit & Loss Account 		   	   16,663,206 			    -   	
(Carried Forward)						    
						    
Profit available for Appropriation			       6,909,501 		     22,217,608 	
					   
APPROPRIATIONS						    
Transfer to Reserves (Net) :						    
Statutory Reserve			    -   		      5,554,402 	
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet		      6,909,501 		     16,663,206 	
 		   					     ------------------ 		   -----------------
	 TOTAL						        6,909,501 		      22,217,608 	
							       ==========	 =========

	
	

       



								                                   
(Suresh Sethi)                							       (Anant Narayan Nanda)
Managing Director & CEO (DIN no. 06426040)			             Chairman (DIN no. 07810425)
R/o, C/901, Lodha Bellissimo, N M Joshi Marg			   R/o, C1, Block 6, New Moti Bagh, New Delhi
Apollo Mill Compound, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai

	
(Priyanka Bhatnagar)			                      	           		          (Savita Gupta)
          							                                                          
Company Secretary  (PAN No. AQKPB7572L)		  Chief Financial Officer (PAN No. AGOPG2529A) 
R/o C-8 Flat No. 9, Chander Nagar			     R/o B5/96, Safdarjung Enclave, New Delhi                     
Ghaziabad, UP						    
	
	 As per our report of even date
	 For V K Sehgal & Associates
	 Chartered Accountants - FRN No. 011519N
								      
	 (Anuj Maheshwari)
	 Partner
 	 Membership No. 096530

Dated: 20/07/2018
Place: New Delhi
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SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)
------------------------------------			    			 
SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL 				    (` in Rs)
------------------------------------	  		      ----------------------		     	     ----------------------
						      As on 31.03.2018			   As on 31.03.2017
----------------------				        ----------------------
Authorised Capital	  			      10,000,000,000 		      	     10,000,000,000 
100,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each	           ----------------- 		          	     ---------------------- 
							     
Issued & Subscribed						    
40,00,00,000 (Previous Year 
27,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each	       4,000,000,000 		       	       2,750,000,000 
						                ----------------- 		           	           ----------------- 
							     
							     
Paid up Capital						    
						            4,000,000,000 		       	       2,750,000,000 
40,00,00,000 (Previous Year 
27,50,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each	           ----------------- 		           	           ----------------- 
		  TOTAL			   	       4,000,000,000 		       	      2,750,000,000 
						           ==========		      	      ==========
--------------------------------------------------------------						    
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES & SURPLUS						    
--------------------------------------------------------------						    
I.  Statutory Reserve						    
-----------------------------						   
Opening Balance			    5,554,402 				     -   	
Addition during the year		   	 -   			         5,554,402
					     ------------------ 	  5,554,402 	  ------------------        	 5,554,402 
II. Capital Reserve						    
---------------------------						    
a).   Revaluation Reserve						    
Opening Balance			    	 -   		  -   	
Addition during the year			   -   		  -   	
Deduction during the year 		   	 -   		  -   	
(being Depreciation on revalued 						    
portion of Property)		   	 ------------------ 			    ------------------ 	
						       -   		  -   
b. Others (Government Grants)						    
Opening Balance		   	 237,514,304 		  -   	
Addition during the year		  3,750,000,000 			   250,000,000 	
Deduction (used) during the year		   		  -   	       2,485,696 	
(see Note No. 15 to Notes of Accounts) ---------------- 			   ------------------ 	
	  				     		  3,987,514,304 			           237,514,304 



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)
 								           (`in Rs)			 
							        ----------------------		  -----------------------
III.  Revenue and Other Reserve			   As on 31.03.2018		  As on 31.03.2017
---------------------------------------------------		   ----------------------		   ----------------------
a. Investment Reserve						   
Opening Balance				    -   				     -   	
Addition during the year			   -   				     -   	
Less: Trf to P & L Account		   	 -   				     -   	
 					     ------------------ 			    ------------------ 	
								         -   				    -   
b. Other Reserve						    
Opening Balance				     -   				     -   	
Addition during the year 			    -   				     -   	
					     ------------------ 			    ------------------ 	
								        -   				     -   
c. Exchange Fluctuation Reserve						    
Opening Balance				     -   				     -   	
Add: Addition during the year (Net)		   -   			    	 -   	
Less: Withdrawn during the year (Net)	  -   				     -   	
 					     ------------------ 			    ------------------ 	
								         -   				     -   
IV. Share Premium						    
Opening Balance				     -   				     -   	
Addition during the year			    -   				     -   	
					     ------------------ 			    ------------------ 	
								        -   				     -   
V.  Special Reserve						    
Opening Balance				     -   				     -   	
Addition during the year			    -   				     -   	
Deduction during the year			    -   				     -   	
					     ------------------ 			    ------------------ 	
								        -   				    -   
							     
VI.  Balance in Profit & Loss Account			              6,909,501 		    16,663,206 
							             ------------------ 		  ------------------ 
Total I,II,,III,IV,V,VI, VI			    	     	     3,999,978,207 		  259,731,912 
						        	    ==========		  ==========
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		  SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)
----------------------------------------					     (`in Rs)			
SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS				          ----------------------		  ----------------------
----------------------------------------			      As on 31.03.2018		  As on 31.03.2017
							            ----------------------		  ----------------------
A.  I  DEMAND DEPOSITS						    
-----------------------------------------						    
 (i)  From Banks				     -   					      -   	
(ii) From Others				     -   					      -   	
					     ------------------ 				    ------------------ 	
									          -   				    -   
							     
II  SAVINGS BANK DEPOSITS				                   12,042,943 		              2,370,079 
							     
III TERM DEPOSITS						    
------------------------------						    
(i)  From Banks					     -   			    -   	
(ii)  From Others				     -   			    -   	
					      ------------------ 		  -	    	  ------------------ 	  	 -	
		   
							         	 ------------------ 		          ------------------ 
TOTAL of  I, II, III			    			   12,042,943 		               2,370,079 
								        ========== 		          ========== 
	
B.   (i)  Deposits of branches In India			             	    12,042,943 		               2,370,079 
(ii)  Deposits of branches outside India			    	 -   				     -   
							                   ------------------ 		          ------------------ 
TOTAL of  i, ii 			    			                  12,042,943 		              2,370,079 
							                   ========== 		         ========== 
-------------------------------------------------						    
SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS						   
-----------------------------------------------						    
I.    Borrowings in India						    
------------------------------------						    
	 (i)  Reserve Bank of India					     -   			    	 -   
	 (ii)  Other Banks 						      -   				    -   
	 (iii)  Other Institutions and Agencies				    -   			    	 -   
	 (iv)  Bonds (including Tier-I, Tier-II,				    -   			    	 -   
	        Subordinate Bonds)						    
							     
II.    Borrowings Outside India						     -   			    	 -   
							                   ------------------ 	                       ------------------ 
TOTAL of I, II								        -   			    	 -   
							                  ========== 	                      ========== 
Secured Borrowings included in I & II above				     -   			   -   
	



------------------------------------------------------------------------------						    
SCHEDULE 5 - OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS						    
------------------------------------------------------------------------------						    
I.   Bills payable			    				    -   				     -   
							     
II.  Inter-office adjustments (net)					     -   				     -   
							     
III. Interest accrued							        -   				     -   
							     
IV. Deffered Tax Liability (Net)				    		  -   			     4,026,246 
							     
V.  Others (including Provisions)			    	   106,466,830		            111,822,899 
								        ------------------ 		         ------------------ 
TOTAL OF I, II, III, IV & V			    		    106,466,830 		          115,849,145 
							                    =========		       ==========

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH RESERVE BANK OF INDIA

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

								        (`in Rs)			
							       -------------------------		     -----------------------
---
							       As on 31.03.2018		      As on 31.03.2017
							       -------------------------		     -----------------------
---
						    
I.   Cash in hand					      	    142,792	  		         147,757 
   						    
						    
II. Balance with Reserve Bank of India						    
     in Current account		  	     3,197,500 			    	        100,000 	
     (ii)  in Other Accounts			   -   			    	       	 -   
					     -----------------  	  	 3,197,500 	  ------------------ 	     100,000

 
							       -------------------------  		          ------------------ 
TOTAL Of I, II 							       3,340,292 	    		        247,757 
				     			   ============ 		         ========== 
 

						    

53



54

--------------------------------------------------------------------						    
SCHEDULE 7- BALANCES WITH BANKS & 						    
MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE						    
--------------------------------------------------------------------						    

I.    In India						    
(i)   Balance with Banks:						    
						    
      (a)  In Current accounts		   41,638,820 			        47,474,060 	
      (b)  In Other Deposit accounts	 856,237,388 			    1,431,779,148 	
					      ------------------ 			      ------------------ 	
			    				    897,876,208 			      1,479,253,208 
      (ii)  Money at Call and Short Notice:						    
						    
      (a)  with Banks				     -   			    	 -   	
      (b)  with Other Institutions			   -   			    	 -   	
					      ------------------ 			      ------------------ 	
								         -   				     -   
							          ------------------ 			       ------------------ 
TOTAL ( i & ii )			    			       897,876,208 		    1,479,253,208 
II.   Outside India 			      			      
 						    
    (i) In Current accounts			    -   				     -   	
    (ii) In Other Deposit accounts		   -   				     -   	
    (iii) Money at Call & Short Notice		   -   				     -   	
					      ------------------ 			        ------------------- 	
TOTAL			    					     -   				     -   
							        ------------------ 			     ------------------ 
GRAND TOTAL ( I & II )				    897,876,208 			    1,479,253,208 
 							       ==========		  ==========



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)

									         (`in Rs)			
-------------------------------------------------		  		   ----------------------	           ---------------
SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS					    As on 31.03.2018         As on31.03.2017
-------------------------------------------------			   	 -----------------------	            --------------
	  						    
I. Investments in India in 						    
							     
(i)  Government Securities				     	       6,437,877,634 	          
1,555,441,976 
(Refer Note 2 in Notes to Accounts)						    
(ii) Other approved securities						      - 			   -   
(iii)Shares								        -  			   -   
(iv) Debentures and Bonds						      -  			   -   
(v) Investment in Associates/ Subsidiaries				    - 			   -   		
(vi) Others			    					     -			   -   
(Various Mutual Funds & Commercial Paper etc.)	 				  
							     
								        ----------------------- 	   ---------------------- 
TOTAL of  I 							            6,437,877,634 	        
1,555,441,976 
								        ----------------------- 	   ---------------------- 
II. Investments outside India 										        
(i) Government Securities						       -   			    -   
(ii)  Investment in Associates/Subsidiaries				     -   			    -   
(iii) Other investments							       -   			    -   
						       		  ------------------------- 	      --------------------- 
TOTAL  of  II 								         -   			    -   
								         ------------------------ 	      --------------------- 
III. Investments in India 						       
I) Gross value of Investments					           6,437,877,634  	         
1,555,441,976 
ii) Less: Aggregate of Provisions for Depreciation			    -   			    -   
								              -------------------- 		  --------------- 
iii) Net Investment 				     		        6,437,877,634 	          
1,555,441,976 
				     				            ==========               ========== 
IV. Investments outside India 						   
I) Gross value of Investments						       -   			    -   
ii) Less: Aggregate of Provisions for Depreciation			    -   			    -   
iii) Net Investments	 		   				     -			    -   
							     
								              ------------------   	         ---------------- 
GRAND TOTAL of  (I), (II)			    		       6,437,877,634  	      1,555,441,976 
								             ==========            ==========
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SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)

						    
-------------------------------------------------					     (`in Rs)			
SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES					       ------------------		           -----------------
-------------------------------------------------			         As on 31.03.2018		  As on 31.03.2017
								          ------------------		           -----------------
						    
A.     i)  Bills Purchased and discounted				         -   			    	 -   
         ii)  Cash Credits, overdrafts and 					         -   			    	 -   
              loans repayable on demand						    
         iii)  Term Loans						       	      -   			    	 -   
							        	   ------------------ 		        ------------------ 	
			   Total			    			        -   			    	 -   
			    				       	   ========== 	   	        ========== 
						       
B.     i)  Secured by Tangible Assets					          -   				    -   
         (including advances against book debts)						    
         ii)  Covered by Bank/Govt.Guarantees				         -   			    	 -   
          iii)  Unsecured			    -   				         -   
							        	    ------------------ 	 	         ------------------ 
	 Total								             -   			    	 -   
			    				        	  ========== 		        ========== 
C.  ( I)  Advances in India						    
i)  Priority Sector							            -   				    -   
ii)  Public Sector							            -   				    -   
iii)  Banks								             -   				    -   
iv)  Others								             -   				    -   
			    				        	    ------------------ 		         ------------------ 
	 Total			    					          -   				    -   
			    				       	  ========== 		        ========== 
 C.  ( II). Advances outside India						    
 i)  Due from banks							            -   			    	 -   
       ii)  Due from others						    
        (a) Bills purchased & discounted					         -   			    	 -   
        (b) Term Loans							            -   			    	 -   
        (c) Others								            -   			    	 -   
			    				         	   ------------------ 		        ------------------ 
	 Total								             -   			    	 -   
							           	   ========== 		       ========== 
						    
				     			        	    ------------------ 		         ------------------ 
GRAND TOTAL of  C (I) & C (II)			   			        -   			    	 -   
							           	  ==========    	       ==========



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)

							     
-------------------------------------------------				     (`in Rs)			 
SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS			   --------------------	 -------------------------
-------------------------------------------------	         		   As on 31.03.2018	   As on 31.03.2017
							        -------------------		  ----------------------------
	 I.   Premises (including Land)						    
	 -At cost as on 1st April of the year		   -   			    -   	
	  -Additions during the year			    -   			    -   	
	 Less :Deductions during the year		   -   			    -   	
	   -Revaluation					      -   			    -   	
	 Less :Depreciation to date		   	  -   			    -   	
									          -   				     -   
							     
II.   Other Fixed Assets (including furniture & fixtures)						    

 -At cost as on 1st April of the year		         2,870,859 		  -   	
 -Additions during the year			        27,798,331 			   2,870,859 	
Less: Deductions during the year			    		  -   			    	 -   
Less:Depreciation to date		   	        2,044,133 			   159,317 	
						           		  28,625,057 			      
2,711,542 
							     
III.   Computer Software						    

-At cost as on 1st April of the year		       46,835,969 				   -   	
- Additions during the year			        12,768,180 			   46,835,969 	
 - Deductions during the year			        20,749,597 			   	 -   	
Less: Amortised to date		   	       8,686,781 		   	 1,687,156 	
(Refer Note No. 38 to the Notes to Accounts)	    		  30,167,771 			    
45,148,813 
							     
IV.  Leased Assets						    
							     
 -At cost as on 1st April of the year		   	 -   			    -   	
 -Additions during the year		   		  -   			    -   	
 -Deductions during the year				     -   			    -   	
Less:Depreciation to date				     -   			    -   	
									          -   			    	 -   
							     
V. Work in Progress				          		  8,646,610 				    -   	
Refer Note No. 37 in the Note of Accounts						    
								         ------------------ 		 ----------------
TOTAL OF I, II, III, IV			    	      		  67,439,438 		   47,860,355 
								        ==========            ========
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SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)

	  							             (`in Rs)			 
-------------------------------------------------				    ------------------	  	 -------------------------
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS			   As on 31.03.2018		  As on 31.03.2017
-------------------------------------------------				    ------------------		  -------------------------
I.     Interest accrued 			    			   6,532,252 			 
22,673,752 
							     
II.    Tax paid in advance/tax deducted 				     -   			    	  -   
       at source (net of provisions)						    
III.   Stationery and Stamps				     		   -   				     -   
IV.  Non Banking assets acquired in 					      -   				     -   
      satisfaction of claims						    
V.   Deferred Tax asset (net)			    		          913,735 		   		  -   
VI. Incorporation Expenses Capitalized				     -   		       	
22,002,088 
VII. Security Deposits				     		        5,778,600 		            	       
447,000 
VIII. Advance given for Capital Commitment			     656,042,091 		   		  -   
(Refer Note No. 37 in the Note of Accounts)						    
							     
IX. Others	  		   				        42,687,730 		             	       
25,000 
								         ------------------ 		  	  ------------- 
TOTAL of I, II, III, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, IX				     711,954,408 		      	  
45,147,840 
				     				    ========== 	        =========
---------------------------------------------------------------------						   
SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES						    
---------------------------------------------------------------------						   
I.(i)   Claims against the Bank not acknowledged			    -   				     -   
as debts							     
							     
I  (ii). Disputed income tax and interest tax				    -   				     -   
demands under appeal, references, etc.						    
II.   Liability for partly paid investments				    -   				     -   
III.  Liability on account of outstanding 				     -   				     -   
forward exchange contracts						    
IV. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents						    
							     
 (a) In India								        -   				    -   	
	 (b) Outside India						      -   				    -   
V.  Acceptance, Endorsements and					     -   				    -   
     Other obligations						    
							     
VI. Other items for which the Bank is			    	      2,500,000 				     -   
      contingently liable						   
				     				    ------------------ 			   -------------- 
TOTAL of I, II, III, IV, V, VI					          2,500,000 			    	 -   
								        =========		    	 =======



SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)
									         (` in Rs)			 
-----------------------------------------------------------------------		  ------------------	 ---------------- 
SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST AND DIVIDENDS EARNED		   Year Ended 	 Year Ended 
------------------------------------------------------------------------		   31.03.2018 	 31.03.2017
									         -----------------	 ------------------		
					   
I.    Interest/discount on Advances/Bills				     	 -   		  -   
II.   Income on Investments			    			   378,840,915 	     5,849,906 
III.  Intt on balances with Reserve Bank of 			    	   16,424,942 	  44,291,359 
 India & other inter-bank funds   						    
IV. Others			    						      -   		   -   
								         	 ------------------ 	  --------------- 
	 TOTAL of I, II, III, IV	  					     395,265,857 	  50,141,265 
								         	 =========   ======== 		
					   
-----------------------------------------------------						    
SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME						    
-----------------------------------------------------				    		
							     
I.    Commission, Exchange & Brokerage					     -   			    - 
II.    Profit on sale of land,					      -   			    -   	
 buildings and other assets 						    
Less:Loss on sale of land,					      -   			    -   	
 buildings and other assets 		   			   ------------------ 	 -   	  ------------------ 	  -   
							     
III.  Dividend Income from Mutual Fund					     -   			    -   
V.  Profit on Exchange Transaction		   		  -   			    -   	
Less:Loss on Exchange Transaction				    -   			    -   	
								         ------------------ 	 -   	 ------------------ 	  -   
V. Profit on sale of Investments				    -   			    -   	
 Less:Loss on sale of investments				    -   			    -   	
								         ------------------ 	 -   	 ------------------ 	  -   
VI. Recruitment Income						      2,238,326	          399,696,200 
VII.  Miscellaneous Income					      	    549,066 	                     2,821 
						       			   ---------------- 	          ----------------
TOTAL of I, II, III, IV, V, VI, VII					      	 2,787,392                399,699,021	
								                  =========	      ==========
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SCHEDULES TO THE ACCOUNTS (INDIA POST PAYMENTS BANK LIMITED)

									         (`in Rs)				 
									         ------------------	 ----------------
--------------------------------------------------------------				    Year Ended 	 Year Ended
SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED					    31.03.2018	 31.03.2017
--------------------------------------------------------------				    ------------------	 ----------------	
I.   Interest on Deposits				     		  386,486 	 10,840 
	 II.  Interest on Reserve Bank of India/					     -   		   -   
	      inter-bank borrowings						    
	 III. Others						       		  -   		   -   
							        		  ---------------- 	 ----------------
	 TOTAL of I, II, III			    			         386,486 	         10,840 
									         ========      ========== 
	 -----------------------------------------------------------------						    
	 SCHEDULE 16 - OPERATING EXPENSES						    
	 -----------------------------------------------------------------	 					   
	 I . Payment to and provisions for employees			   149,535,701 	         1,394,880 
	 II. Rent, Taxes and Lighting					         2,243,183 	                   390 
	 III.  Printing & Stationery					         1,149,345 	            103,776 
	 IV. Advertisement & Publicity				     	     5,181,772 	            347,276 
	 V.  Depreciation on bank’s property 		  9,655,728 			   1,846,473	       	
	 Less: Adjusted with Revaluation			    -   			    	 -   	
	        Reserve				     	 -------------- 			    -------------- 	
				     					         9,655,728 	         1,846,473 
							     
	 VI. Directors’ Fees, allowances and expenses			        560,000 		   -   
	 VII. Auditors’ fees and expenses (including			         104,600 	              69,000 
	        statutory auditor of subsidiaries, 						   
	        branch auditors’ fees & expenses)						    
	 VIII. Law charges			    			         114,576 		   -   
	 IX.  Postage,Telegrams,Telephones, etc.			       1,282,261 	             93,964 
	 X.   Repairs &  Maintenance					              83,202 		   -   
	 XI.  Insurance						       	        719,800 	              54,293 
	 XII. Professional Fee			    			     72,369,809 	      65,187,959 
	 XIII. Recruitment Expenditure				     	     9,038,466        310,484,362 
	 XIV. Training Expenditure					       26,959,810 		   -   
	 XV. Other expenditure					     	   85,316,882 	       31,781,502 
	 XVI. Incorporation Expenditure Write Off			     22,002,088 	         5,500,522 
							                     	 ---------------- 	    -----------------
	 TOTAL of  I to XVI				                 	 386,317,223	    416,864,397 
							                  		 ========       =========



Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 2017-18

Particulars Amount  
(in Rs)

Amount  
(in Rs)

(2017-18) (2016-17)

8 A. Cash Flow from Operations

i) Net Profit After Tax  -9,753,705  22,217,608 

Add: Provision for Tax (inculding deffered Tax)  1,124,934  10,747,441 

Profit before Tax i)  -8,628,771 32965048.
9967473

ii) Adjustments:

Depreciation on Fixed Assets  9,655,728  1,846,473 

Incorporation Expenses Written Off  22,002,088  5,500,522 

Prior Period Item Written Off 19978310.74 0

Less: Amount withdrawn from Grants -  -12,485,696 

Total Adjustments ii)  51,636,126  -5,138,701 

Operating profit before changes in Operating Assets & 
Liabilities

 43,007,356  27,826,348 

iii) Adjustments for net change in Operating Assets & 
Liabilities

Increase in Investments (Net)  -4,882,435,658 -1,555,441,976 

Increase in Other Assets (Net)  -687,894,921  -50,648,362 

Increase in Deposits (Net)  9,672,864  2,370,079 

Increase in Other Liabilities (Net)  -7,484,759  107,263,465 

Total adjustment for net change in Operating Assets & 
Liabilties

(iii)  -5,568,142,474 -1,496,456,794 

Cash Flow used from Operations (i)+(ii)+(iii)  -5,525,135,118 -1,468,630,446 

Tax Paid  -3,936,226  -2,161,761 

Net Cash Flow used from Operations A  -5,529,071,344 -1,470,792,207 

B. Cash Flow used in Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets  -49,213,121  -49,706,828 

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activites B  -49,213,121  -49,706,828 

C. Cash Flow generated from Financing Activites

Issue of Share Capital  1,250,000,000  2,750,000,000 

Receipt of Grants  3,750,000,000  250,000,000 

Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities C  5,000,000,000  3,000,000,000 

Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalent (A)+(B)+(C’) D  -578,284,465 1,479,500,965 

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
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Cash and Balance with RBI  247,757 -

Balance with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice 1,479,253,208 -

 1,479,500,965 

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

Cash and Balance with RBI  3,340,292  247,757 

Balance with Banks & Money at Call & Short Notice  897,876,208 1,479,253,
208

 901,216,500 1,479,500,965 

------------------- -------------------

 -578,284,465 1,479,500,965

------------------- ------------------
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SCHEDULE 17

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION:

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis and conform, in all material 
aspects, to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in India unless otherwise stated encom-
passing applicable statutory provisions, regulatory norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of India (RBI), 
circulars and guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, Banking Regulation 
Act 1949, Accounting Standards (AS) and pronouncements issued by The Institute of Chartered Ac-
countants of India (ICAI) and prevailing practices in Banking industry in India.  

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis with accrual concept and in 
accordance with the accounting policies and practices consistently followed unless otherwise stated.

2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make estimates and assump-
tions in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as on date of 
the financial statements and the reported income and expenses for the reporting period. Manage-
ment believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and 
reasonable.

Any revision to the accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods 
unless otherwise stated.

3. Revenue Recognition

Income & Expenditure are accounted for on accrual basis.

4. Investments

4.1	The banks follow the trade date method of accounting for purchase and sale of investments, ex-
cept for Government of India and state government securities where settlement date method of 
accounting is being followed in accordance with RBI guidelines.

4.2	Investments are classified into six categories as stipulated in form A of the third schedule to the 
Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

4.3	Investments have been categorized into “Held to Maturity”, “Available for Sale” and “Held for 
Trading in terms of RBI guidelines.

4.4	In determining acquisition cost of an investment

a.	 Brokerage, commission, Securities Transaction Tax (STT) etc. paid inconnection with acquisition of 
securities are treated as revenue expenses upfront and excluded from cost.

b.	 Interest accrued up to the date of acquisition/sale of securities i.e. broken period interest is ex-
cluded from the acquisition cost/sale consideration and the same is accounted in interest accrued 
but not due account.

c.	 Cost is determined on the weighted average cost method for all categories of investment.
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4.5.	Investments are valued as per RBI/FIMMDA guidelines

4.6	Profit or loss on sale of investments in any category is taken to Profit and Loss account but, in case of profit 
on sale of investments in “Held to Maturity” category, an equivalent amount (net of taxes and amount  
required to be transferred to Statutory Reserve) is appropriated to “Capital Reserve Account” 

5.	 FIXED ASSETS
5.1	Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation, wherever 

applicable.
5.2	Software is capitalized and clubbed under Intangible assets (Computer Software) in Fixed Assets 

schedule.
5.3	Cost includes cost of purchase and all expenditure such as site preparation, installation costs and  

professional fees incurred on the asset till the time of capitalization. Subsequent expenditure/s 
incurred on the assets are capitalised only when it increases the future benefits from such assets 
or their functioning capability.

5.4.	DEPRECIATION

A.	 Since no rates of depreciation on fixed assets have been prescribed by the Banking Regulation 
Act, 1949, the provisions of Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 will be followed by IPPB

Asset Estimated useful life
specified under Schedule II

of the Companies Act, 2013

Owned Premises 60 years

Computers 3 years

Servers, routers, network and related IT equipment 6 years

Automated Teller Machines (‘ATMs’) 15 years

Electrical equipment 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Furniture and fittings 10 years

Motor Vehicles 8 years

1.	 B.  Depreciation is being charged over the estimated useful life of the asset on a straight-line basis.
2.	 C. In case of acquisition or disposal of assets, depreciation will be charged proportionately based 

on the number of days the asset has been used during the year. 
3.	 D. Assets costing upto INR 5,000/- will be fully depreciated in the year of purchase.
4.	 E. In case of revalued/impaired assets, depreciation will be provided over the remaining useful life of the  

assets with reference to revised assets values.

6.	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Regular employees are covered in the group medical insurance scheme.



Terminal Benefits
i)	 Provident Fund: All eligible employees are covered under the Employees Provident Fund. 	
ii)	 Gratuity: The Bank provides gratuity to all eligible employees. The benefit is in the form of lump sum  

payments to vested employees on retirement, on death while in employment, or on termination of  
employment, for an amount equivalent to 15 days’ basic salary payable for each completed year 
of service, subject to a maximum prescribed as per The Payment of Gratuity Act 1972. Vesting oc-
curs upon completion of five years of service. 

7.	 TAXES ON INCOME

Income tax expense is the aggregate amount of current tax and deferred tax expense incurred by 
the Bank. The current tax expense and deferred tax expense are determined in accordance with the 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and as per Accounting Standard 22 - Accounting for Taxes on 
Income respectively.

Deferred Tax adjustments comprises of changes in the deferred tax assets or liabilities during the 
year. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised by considering the impact of timing differences 
between taxable income and accounting income for the current year, and carry forward losses. De-
ferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. The impact of changes in deferred tax assets 
and liabilities is recognised in the profit and loss account. Deferred tax assets are recognised and re-
assessed at each reporting date, based upon management’s judgment as to whether their realisation 
is considered as reasonably/virtually certain.

8.    PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

In conformity with AS 29, “Provisions,  Contingent  Liabilities  and Contingent Assets”, issued by the 
Institute  of  Chartered Accountants of India, the Bank re o nises provisions only when it has a present 
obligation as a result  of  a past event, and would  result in a probable out flow of resources embody-
ing economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of the obligation can be made. Contingent Assets are not recognised in the financial state-
ments.

9.    Accounting for Government Grants

As per the mandate, the grant has been san ctioned by the Government for purpose of furthering 
financial inclusion by India Post Payments Bank Ltd through provision of ATMs/Micro-ATMs/PoS and 
for emerging technologies solution for providing cash-out facilities, capacity building of village post 
offices, strengthening cash management systems at village post offices, and conduc ing financial lit-
eracy camps. Therefore, the grant received is for creation of Captal Assets and the grant amount has 
been treated as shareholder’s fund and credited to Capital Reserves. As such the bank is adopting the 
Capital Approach method as per AS-12 on Government Grants
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SCHEDULE 18
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. 	 Capital								       			   (Rs in 000)

S No. Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

i. Common Equity Tier I Capital* 7968897 2942581

ii. Common Equity Tier 1 Capital ratio (%) 767.99 755.47

iii. Tier 1 Capital ratio (%) 767.99 755.47

iv. Tier 2 Capital ratio (%) 0.00 0.00

v. Total Capital ratio (CRAR) (%) 767.99 755.47

vi. Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of In-
dia in the Bank

100.00% 100.00%

vii. Amount of equity capital raised 1250000 2750000

viii. Amount of Additional Tier 1 Capital raised, of which:
Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS)
Perpetual Debt Instrument (PDI)

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

ix. Amount of Tier 2 capital raised, of which:
Debt Capital Instruments:
Preference Share Capital Instruments: (Perpetual Cumula-
tive Preference Shares (PCPS)/ Redeemable Non Cumula-
tive Preference Shares (RNCPS) / Redeemable Cumulative 
Preference Shares (RCPS))

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

* After deducting incorporation expenditure not written off/deferred Tax Assets and computer software.

2.  Investments
												            (Rs in 000)

S No. Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

(1) Value of Investments

i Gross value of Investments 6437878 1555442

a In India (T Bills) 6437878 1555442

b Outside India 0 0

ii Provision for Depreciation 0 0

a In India 0 0

b Outside India 0 0



iii Net Value of Investments 6437878 1555442

a In India 6437878 1555442

b Outside India 0 0

(2) Movement of Provisions held towards depreciation on 
investments

i Opening Balance 0 0

ii Add: Provision made during the year 0 0

iii Less: Write Off/Write-back of excess provisions during 
the year (Net)

0 0

iv Closing Balance 0 0

3. 	 Repo Transactions (in face value Terms)

4. 	 Non-SLR Investment Portfolio

4a. 	 Issuer composition of Non SLR Investments	

4b. 	 Non-performing Non-SLR Investments

4c. 	 Sale and transfers to/from HTM category			 

5.	 Derivatives

5a.	 Forward Rate Agreement/Interest Rate Swap

5b.	 Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

5c. 	 Disclosure on risk exposure in Derivatives

6.	 Asset Quality

6a.	 Non-Performing Assets

6b.	 Particulars of Accounts Restructured  	

6c.	 Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation/Reconstruction Company  (SC/ RC) for Assets 
	 Reconstruction
6d.	 Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold from/to other bank.
6e.	 Provision on Standard Assets

8. Asset Liability Management

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 5.35% 1.67%

ii) Non-Interest Income as a percentage to Working Funds 0.04% 13.32%

iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 0.15% 1.10%

iv) Return on Assets -0.13% 0.74%

In case of S 
No. 3 to S 

No. 6 all the 
disclosure

are Nil/Not
Applicable
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v) Business (Deposit plus advances) per employee (Rs in 000) 11 790

vi) Profit/ (Loss) per employee (Rs in 000) (9) 7405

8. Asset Liability Management

Maturity 
Pattern

Deposits Advances Investment Borrowings Foreign 
Currency 
Assets

Foreign 
Currency 
Liabilities

Next Day --- NIL --- NIL NIL NIL

2-7 days --- NIL --- NIL NIL NIL

8-14 days 1204
(237)

NIL 499065
(Nil

NIL NIL NIL

15-30 days ---- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

31 days to 2 
months

--- NIL 3996890
(Nil)

NIL NIL NIL

Over 2 
months to 3 
months

--- NIL 3996890
(Nil)

NIL NIL NIL

Over 3 
months to 6 
months

--- NIL 1236195
(533537)

NIL NIL NIL

Over 6 
months to 1 
Year

--- NIL NIL
(47677)

NIL NIL NIL

Over 1 Year 
to 3 Years

10839
(2133)

NIL --- NIL NIL NIL

Over 3 Years 
to 5 Years

--- NIL --- NIL NIL NIL

Over 5 Years --- NIL --- NIL NIL NIL

Total 12043
(2370)

NIL 6437878
(1555442)

NIL NIL NIL

Figures given in the brackets are for the last year.

9. 	 Exposures:

9a. 	 Exposure to Real Estate Sector

9b. 	 Exposure to Capital Market	

9c. 	 Risk Category wise Country Exposure 	

	 In case of S No. 9 (a) to S No. 9 (c) all the disclosure are Nil/Not Applicable

9d.	 Details of Single Borrower Limit and Group Borrower Limit exceeded by the bank.:   

	 Not Applicable



9e. 	 Unsecured Advances: Not Applicable

10.	 Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI: Nil

Other disclosure required by Accounting Standards

11.	 AS-6 Depreciation Accounting: 

Break up of Total Depreciation for the year ended March 2018 for each class of the assets

												            (Rs in 000)

Class of Assets 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Other Fixed Assets 1885 159

Computer Software 7771 1687

Total 9656 1846

12.	 AS-9 Revenue Recognition: Revenue Recognition is done on accrual basis.

13.	 AS-11 Change in foreign exchange rates: 		  Nil

14.	 AS-12Government Grants Utilisation
	 The utilisation of the grant for the year ended 31st March 2018 is given below:
												            (Rs in 000)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Opening Balance 237514 ----

Addition during the year 3750000 250000

Used during the year ------- 12486

Closing Balance 3987514 237514

15. AS-15: Employee Benefits:  The bank has not made any provision towards the employee benefits 
except the medical insurance. 

16. Segment Reporting for the year ended 31st March 2018
												            (Rs in 000)

Part A: Business Segments

S No Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2018 
(Audited)

Year Ended 
31.03.2017 (Au-

dited)

i. Segment Revenue

a) Treasury 5.	 395266 6.	 5850

b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 7.	 ----- 8.	 ----

c) Retail Banking 9.	 ----- 10.	 ----

d) Other Banking Operations 11.	 2787 12.	 443990
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Total 13.	 398053 14.	 449840

ii. Segment Results

a) Treasury 15.	 32964 16.	 -5156

b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 17.	 ----- 18.	 -----

c) Retail Banking 19.	 ----- 20.	 -----

d) Other Banking Operations 21.	 -21615 22.	 38121

Total 23.	 11349 24.	 32965

iii. Unallocated Expenses 25.	 ------

iv. Operating Profit 26.	 11349 27.	 32965

v. Provision for tax 28.	 1125 29.	 10747

vi. Extraordinary Item (Prior Period Expenditure) 30.	 19978 31.	 ----

vii. Net Profit 32.	 -9754 33.	 22218

Other Information:

viii. Segment Assets

a) Treasury 34.	 7338951 35.	 1555542

b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 36.	 ----- 37.	 ----

c) Retail Banking 38.	 ----- 39.	 ----

d) Other Banking Operations 40.	 779537 41.	 1572409

Sub Total 42.	 8118488 43.	 3127951

e) Unallocated Assets 44.	 ----- 45.	 -----

Total Assets 46.	 8118488 47.	 3128124

ix. Segment Liabilities

a) Treasury 48.	 107130 49.	 58791

b) Corporate/Wholesale Banking 50.	 ----- 51.	 ----

c) Retail Banking 52.	 ----- 53.	 ----

d) Other Banking Operations 54.	 11380 55.	 59428

Sub Total 56.	 118510 57.	 118219

e) Unallocated Liabilities 58.	 ---- 59.	 ----

Total Liabilities 60.	 118510 61.	 118219



Part B – Geographic Segments

As the bank is operating only in India, no geographic segment is required to be done. 

17.	 Disclosure of Related parties as per AS-18 issued by ICAI: Nil

18.	 Accounting for leases – AS-19 Nil

19.	 Earnings per share – AS-20

S 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

A EPS – Basic/Diluted (in Rs ) -0.03 0.16

B Amount used as numerator Profit/(Loss) (after tax) (Rs in 000) (9754) 22218

C Nominal Value of Share Rs 10 each Rs 10 each

D Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denomi-
nator

369863014 136164384

20. Accounting for taxes on Income – AS 22:

The Bank has recognized deferred tax assets and liability as per accounting policy. Major components 
of which are set out below:

												            (Rs in 000)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Deferred Tax Assets

Incorporation Expenditure 4249

Total 4249 Nil

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 3335 4026

Total 3335 4026

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) ---- 4026

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 914 ----

21. 	 Accounting for Investments in Associates in 
Consolidated Financial Statements (AS-23)

22. 	 AS-24, Discontinuing Operations

23. 	 AS-28, Impairment of Assets	

24. 	 AS-29, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets

In case of S No. 21 to S No. 

24 all the disclosure are 

Nil/Not Applicable
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25. Break up of “Provisions and Contingencies” shown under the head Expenditure in Profit and Loss 
Account is as follows:
												            (Rs in 000)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Provisions for depreciation on investment (net) ----- -----

Provision towards NPAs (net) ----- ----

Provision towards standard assets ----- -----

Provision made towards Income Tax 1125 10747

Other Provisions & Contingencies ---- -----

Total 1125 10747

26.	 Break up of floating provisions: Nil
27.	 Draw Down from Reserves: Nil
28.	 Disclosure of complaints and unimplemented awards of Banking Ombudsman including customer  
complaints pertaining to ATM.

a. Customer Complaints

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year Nil Nil

b) No. of complaints received during the year 75 7

c) No. of complaints redressed during the year 66 7

d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 9* Nil
* resolved as on date

b.	 Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

a) No. of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the 
year

Nil Nil

b) No. of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman dur-
ing the year

Nil Nil

c) No. of awards implemented during the year Nil Nil

d) No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year Nil Nil

29.	 Disclosure in respect of Insurance Business undertaken by the bank: Nil
30.	 I. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposure and NPAs:



	 a) Concentration of Deposits								        (Rs in 000)

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017

Total Deposit of Twenty largest depositors 1828 1272

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total 
Deposits of the bank

15.18% 53.67%

b. Concentration of Advances
c. Concentration of exposures
d  Concentration of NPAs
e.  Provision Coverage Ratio

In case of S No. 30 (I) (b) to 
(e) all the disclosure are 

Nil/Not Applicable

II.	 Sector-wise advances
III. 	 Movement of NPAs
IV. 	 Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue

In case of S No. 30 (II) to (IV) 
all the disclosure are 
Nil/Not Applicable

31. Reward Points of Credit Card & Debit Card
32.  Discosures relating to Securitization
33.  Credit Default Swaps
34.  Transfer to Depositor Education and Awareness 
       Fund (DEAF)
35.  Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure (UFCE)
36.  Intra-Group Exposures

In case of S No. 31 to S No.
 36 all the disclosure are 

Nil/Not Applicable.

Other Notes:

37.   Advances to DOP
During the year IPPB has remitted an amount of Rs 3,14,74,279/- to Department of Posts (DOP) for the pur-
pose of the civil & electrical work of IPPB corporate office, Speed Post Centre, Delhi.  Further, IPPB has remitted 
an amount of Rs 29,44,835/- for the civil & electrical work of Central Processing Centre at Civil Lines, Delhi. In  
addition to the above, Rs 63,19,06,156/- has been remitted to various DOP-Circles for providing for 
furniture & branding at 650 IPPB branches in DOP premises and branding for various access points 
of DOP. 

The civil and Electrical work at the Central Processing Centre& corporate office was under imple-
mentation as on March 31, 2018. Further the DOP-Circles are yet to complete the major portion of 
procurement of furniture and branding of IPPB Branches and branding of DOP-Access points as on 
March 31, 2018 and the requisite invoice/bills are yet to materialize Therefore, the balance amount 
of Rs 65,60,42,091/- remitted to DOP Circles for furniture and branding including the entire amount 
of Rs 29,44,835/- and Rs 3,14,74,279/- remitted to DOP-Delhi Circle for CPC& corporate Office respec-
tively is being shown as Advances to DOP (Capital Commitment)

38. Reversal of Capital Expenditure &Prior Period Item
IPPB had entered into a MOU with PNB to facilitate and operationalize pilot launch of IPPB in Janu-
ary 2017. PNB has been raising bills on IPPB under Cost-to-Cost arrangement between PNB and IPPB 
envisaged under the MOU. During the year ended 31.03.2017, an amount of Rs 4.57 crore for the 
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software license/Servers had been capitalized. While negotiating for extension of PNB MOU beyond 
January 2018, it has emerged that the shelf life of some of the Software license/Servers aggregating 
Rs 2.07 crs had expired. Therefore, as a remedial measure, the amount of Rs 2.07 crs capitalized last 
year has been reversed as revenue expenditure net of reversal of depreciation charged thereon for Rs 
0.07 crs. Accordingly, net amount of Rs 2.00 crs has been written off during the year as prior period 
expenditure under the head extraordinary item. 

39. Technology Platform 
IPPB has awarded the contract for implementation of its dedicated and customized technology plat-
form for an amount of Rs 801 crore (including GST). The life of the contract is 5 years effective from 
August 14, 2017. The vendor has started the implementation process and deployment of Hardware, 
Softwares, Customization and testing of the platform was at advanced stage as on March 31, 2018. 
The payment milestones, as per the contract, are yet to betriggered by March 31, 2018. IPPB tech-
nology platform is expected to Go-Live shortly. In view of the above, IPPB has not capitalized any 
expenditure for this technology platform in FY-2017-18



ke´ÀceebkeÀ efjHe-HeerSme³et-uesKee/SHeÀ-181/DeeF&.Heer.Heer.yeer./2017-18/545
keÀe³ee&ue³e 

ceneefveosMekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ee, [ekeÀ Je otjmeb®eej
Meece veeLe ceeie&, (meceerHe Hegjevee meef®eJeeue³e), efouueer -110054

OFFICE OF THE 
DIRECTOR GENERAL OF AUDIT, POST & TELECOMMUNICATIONS

SHAM NATH MARG, (NEAR OLD SECRETARIAT), DELHI-110054
efoveebkeÀ ..........................

DATE

mesJee ceW 
He´yebOe efveosMekeÀ Je cegK³e keÀe³e&keÀejer DeefOekeÀejer 
Fbef[³ee Heesmì HesceWì yeQkeÀ efueefceìs[
[ekeÀIej, mHeer[ Heesmì meWìj efyeefu[bie,
ceekexÀì efyeefu[bie, ceekexÀì jes[,
veF& efouueer -110001

efJe<e³eë 	 Fbef[³ee Heesmì ces³eceWìdme yeQkeÀ efueefceìs[ kesÀ 31 cee®e& 2018 keÀes meceeHle Keelees Hej kebÀHeveer DeefOeefve³ece, 2013 keÀer Oeeje 		
	 143 (6) (yeer) kesÀ lenle Yeejle kesÀ efve³eb$ekeÀ SJeb ceneuesKee Hejer#eekeÀ keÀer efìHHeefCe³ee~

ceneso³e,
	 GHejeskeÌle efJe<e³e mes mecyebefOele kebÀHeveer DeefOeefve³ece, 2013 keÀer Oeeje 143 (6) (yeer) kesÀ Debleie&le Fbef[³ee Heesmì Hes³eceWìdme yeQkeÀ efueefceìs[ 
kesÀ 31 cee®e& 2018 keÀes meceeHle Keelees Hej “COMMENTS Fme He$e kesÀ meeLe mebueive nwë
mebueivekeÀë ³eLeesHejer 

YeJeoer³e,
(jepesMe jbpeve)

											             efveosMekeÀ (SScepeer-1)

otjYee<e/Telephone				    F&-cesue /E-mail 						      HewÀkeÌme /Fax:
23814747/4623/2666			  dgapt@cap.gov.in				    011-23813822
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (B) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDIA POST MAYMENTS BANK  
LIMITED (IPPB), NEW DELHI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

The preparation of financial statements of M/s India post Payments Bank Limited (IPPB), New 
Delhi for the year ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial reporting framework pre-
scribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The 
Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 139(5) of 
the Act is responsible for expressing opinion in the financial statements under section 143 of the Act 
based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 10 july 
2018.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary 
audit under section 143(6) (a) of the Act. of the financial statements of M/s India Post Payments Bank 
Limited, New Delhi for the year ended 31 March 2018. This supplementary audit has been carried out 
independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditor and is limited primarily 
to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company personnel and a selective examination of some of 
the accounting records, Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following sig-
nificant matters under section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my 
view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the related 
audit report:

General

The Company has not conducted physical verification of fixed assets. the location of assets are 
also not mentioned in the record. thus the internal control of the organisation is weak. Statutory Audi-
tor has also not mentioned the same in his report.

(Sangita /choure)
Director General of Audit 

(Post & Telecommunication)
 



Addendum to the Independent Auditor’s Report 

To
President of India
For India Post Payment Bank Limited 
Report in the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

We have issued our Independent Audit report under section 143(2) and (3) of the Companies Act 2013 
dated July 20, 2018. Thereafter, The CAG has conducted supplementary audit under section 143(6) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 

In view of the CAG Observations we hereby report as under:

Qualified Option

“The Company has not conducted physical verification of fixed assets. The locations of the assets 
are also not mentioned in the record. Thus the internal controls of the organization in weak.:

Our earlier report dated July 20, 2018 should be read with the above said qualification.

For V.K. Sehgal & Associates 
Chartered Accountants

	
Anuj Maheshwari 
Partner

Date: October 11, 2018
Place: New Delhi	
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